Public Document Pack

SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE
Chair: Councillor Amanda Taylor
Labour Spokesperson: Councillor Russ McPherson CAMBRIRGE

}
}

LY
[,
W

AGENDA

To: Councillors Taylor (Chair), Blackhurst (Vice-Chair), Sanders, Al Bander,
Dryden, McPherson, Newbold, Stuart and Swanson

Co-opted non-voting members:
County Councillors: Carter, Heathcock and Shepherd

Despatched: Wednesday 1 September 2010

Date: Thursday, 9 September 2010

Time: 7.30 pm

Venue: Horobin Room - Homerton College

Contact: Martin Whelan Direct Dial: 01223 457012

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

The Open Forum section of the Agenda: Members of the public are invited to ask
any question, or make a statement on any matter related to their local area covered
by the City Council Wards for this Area Committee. The Forum will last up to 30
minutes, but may be extended at the Chair's discretion. The Chair may also time
limit speakers to ensure as many are accommodated as practicable.

To ensure that your views are heard, please note that there are
Question Slips for Members of the Public to complete.

Public speaking rules relating to planning applications:

Anyone wishing to speak about one of these applications, may do so provided that
they have made a representation in writing within the consultation period and have
notified the Area Committee Manager shown at the top of the agenda by 12 Noon
on the day before the meeting of the Area Committee.

Filming, recording and photography at council meetings is allowed subject to certain
restrictions and prior agreement from the chair of the meeting.

Requests to film, record or photograph, whether from a media organisation or a
member of the public, must be made to the democratic services manager at least
three working days before the meeting.



AGENDA
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the committee are asked to declare any interests in the items
on the agenda. In the case of any doubt, the advice of the Head of Legal
should be sought before the meeting.

3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8TH JULY 2010 (Pages 1 - 10)
4 MATTERS AND ACTIONS ARISING FORM THE MINUTES
5 OPEN FORUM

6 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (Pages 11 - 18)

7 PLANNING

7a 10/0700/FUL - Erection of single storey dwelling at land to the rear of 71
Mill End Road. (Pages 19 - 48)
REPRESENTATIONS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Public representations on a planning application should be made in writing (by e-
mail or letter, in both cases stating your full postal address), within the deadline set
for comments on that application. You are therefore strongly urged to submit your
representations within this deadline.

Submission of late information after the officer's report has been published is to be
avoided. A written representation submitted to the Environment and Planning
Department by a member of the public after publication of the officer's report will only
be considered if it is from someone who has already made written representations in
time for inclusion within the officer's report. Any public representation received by the
Department after 12 noon two business days before the relevant Committee meeting
(e.g. by 12.00 noon on Monday before a Wednesday meeting; by 12.00 noon on
Tuesday before a Thursday meeting) will not be considered.

The same deadline will also apply to the receipt by the Department of additional
information submitted by an applicant or an agent in connection with the relevant item
on the Committee agenda (including letters, e-mails, reports, drawings and all other
visual material), unless specifically requested by planning officers to help decision-
making.



At the meeting public speakers at Committee will not be allowed to circulate any
additional written information to their speaking notes or any other drawings or other
visual material in support of their case that has not been verified by officers and that
is not already on public file.

To all members of the Public

Any comments that you want to make about the way the Council is running Area
Committees are very welcome. Please contact the Committee Manager listed at the
top of this agenda or complete the forms supplied at the meeting.

If you would like to receive this agenda by e-mail, please contact the Committee
Manager.

Additional information for public: City Council officers can also be emailed
firsthame.lasthame@cambridge.gov.uk

Information (including contact details) of the Members of the City Council can be
found from this page:
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/about-the-council/councillors/




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3
South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE 8 July 2010

Present. Councillors Taylor (Chair), Blackhurst (Vice-Chair), Sanders,
Al Bander, Dryden, McPherson, Newbold, Stuart and Swanson

County Councillor - Heathcock

| FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL

10/30/SAC Election of Chair and Vice Chair for the municipal year
2010/11

Clir Taylor, proposed by Clir Blackhurst and seconded by Clir Al Bander was
elected as Chair of South Area Committee for the municipal year 2010-11.

Clir Blackhurst, proposed by Clir Stuart and seconded by Clir Swanson was

elected as Vice-Chair of South Area Committee for the municipal year 2010-
11.

10/31/SAC Apologies for Absence

There were no apologies for absence.

10/32/SAC Declaration of Interest

Clir Blackhurst declared a personal interest as a member of Trumpington
Residents Association and a member of the University of Cambridge.

Clir Taylor declared a personal interested as an employee of Cambridge
University Press, and vacated the Chair for the item.

Cllr Taylor declared a personal interest as she know some of the objectors for
the planning application related to 102 Glebe Road.

Clir Al Bander declared a personal interest as a member of Trumpington
Residents Association.

Page 1



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

10/33/SAC Minutes of the meeting held 13th May 2010

The minutes of the meeting held on 13" May 2010 were agreed as a true and
accurate record subject to the addition of Clir Swanson to the attendees list.

10/34/SAC Open Forum

There were no questions raised during the open forum.

10/35/SAC Safer Neighbourhoods

The committee received a report from the Police regarding Safer
Neighbourhoods. The following comments were made on the report.

e Additional policing in the Accordia/Aberdeen Avenue area was
welcomed. The importance of supporting and developing a sense of
community in new area. The committee was encouraged to continue
reporting relevant issues to the Police.

e Clarification was sought on what work was undertaken with parents, and
whether parents were always aware of the issues created by young
people in their care. The Sergeant outlined the overall approach in this
area including the use of parenting support workers, ASBOs and
engagement with parents.

e The recent reports in relation to alleged drugs issues around Hanover
Court were highlighted, and it was suggested that the issue should be
prioritised.

e Significant concern was raised regarding the ongoing level of violence
against health care workers at the Addenbrookes site. Additional
concerns were raised the length of time it was taking to investigate some
of the incidents. The Police advised that they worked closely with the
hospital and that there was no evidence or suggestion that the hospital
were withholding information. It was noted that a number of delays were
as a result of alleged perpetrators being detained under mental health
provisions.

Resolved

Page 2



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

1. The committee endorsed the priorities as outlined in the committee report
with the addition of drugs issues associated with Hanover Court.

10/36/SAC Licensing Act 2003 - Public Consultation on the Statement of
Licensing Policy

The Head of Refuse and Environment introduced the consultation document
on the Statement of Licensing Policy, and provided a brief overview of how it
related to the wider licensing system.

The committee sought clarification on the misuse of alcohol and drugs figures.
It was explained that the figures were obtained from the Police.

The committee also suggested that the discussion would have been assisted if
the Police had remained for the item. The Head of Refuse and Environment
explained that the Police were statutory consultees.

10/37/SAC Briefing on New Planning Services

The committee received a presentation on the new planning services. The
following comments were made;

e What support will be available if members of the public can’t find
information? The committee were advised that there was a Duty
Planning Officer available at the Customer Services Centre. It was also
noted that the help documentation was easily accessible via the
website.

e The committee and members of the public welcomed the accessibility of
the system.

o Clarification was sought on how far back the system would go. The
Officers explained that full information (documents) back to 2008 was
currently available and over time this would be extended back to 2000.
The committee were also advised that the text information on
applications was available back to the early 1960’s, and further
information for the period 1964-1983 was available via microfiche and to
1999 on CD at the Council’s Customer Service Centre.

Page 3



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

The possibility of including a more detailed or consistent approach to
naming conventions, or the inclusion of a summary document was
suggested for large applications as it was suggested that documents
were sometimes difficult to find. It was noted that options may be limited,
but the issues raised would be considered.

It was confirmed that significant amounts of information were included in
the Public Access system and main corporate website regarding the
planning process.

Clarification was sought on the status of “copyright” protected document
provided by third parties and whether these would be published. Officers
confirmed that since the system went live no problems had been raised,
but that it would continue to be monitored.

The committee were assured that hard copies of plans and drawings
would continue to be made available on request at the Customer
Service Centre.

10/38/SAC Community Development and Leisure Grants

The committee received a report from Cambridgeshire Community Foundation
regarding Community Development and Leisure Grants.

The

representative outlined the applications received and proposed

allocations. The committee asked a number of questions to clarify the nature of
applications including;

10147 (2" Cherry Hinton Guides) — The level of fundraising undertaken
by the group

11512 (Hanover and Princess Court Residents Association) — The
details of the next grant round, specifically whether it was too late for
community group to apply for Christmas related funding.

2315 (Trumpington Elderly Action Group) — The representatives of the
group present confirmed that the group had adopted a new constitution,
and a copy would be provided to CCF.

Resolved

Page 4



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

1. The Committee approved the grant allocations as outlined in the committee
report.

10/39/SAC Environmental Improvement Programme

The committee received a report from the Principal Landscape Architect
regarding the Environmental Improvement Programme. Updates were
provided on the following schemes;

o Fishers Lane
o Rectory Terrace
e Cherry Hinton High Street Verges

Clarendon Road Traffic Calming

ClIr Taylor withdrew for the item.

The committee were advised that following the suggestion from the March
2010 meeting, options for traffic calming in the area had been examined. An
indicative cost of £70,000 based on the design included with the committee
report was highlighted.

The committee were further advised that full public consultation would be
undertaken subject to the outcome of the Area Joint Committee in September.

Mr Ron Clifton addressed the committee representing Brooklands Avenue
Residents Association. The following issues were raised;

e A serious incident involving the death of a domestic animal

¢ A recent monitoring exercise highlighted 42% of cars travelling north are
exceeding the speed limit.

e Significant risk of accidents.

e Main offenders appear to be cars leaving the Government Office and
Cambridge University Press sites.

e Reservations about whether the imposition of speed humps was the
most appropriate solution, and whether alternative mechanisms such as
a 20mph limit or working with the main alleged offenders.

¢ Reduction of available parking spaces

Page 5



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

In response the committee were advised that speed humps were the most
efficient options for reducing speed, but that other options could be
investigated.

The committee made the following comments on the proposal;

e The possibility of installing 20 mph flashing signs and implementing a
“Speed Watch initiative”.

e The need to avoid “heavy engineering” solutions.
e The need to engage with the major alleged offenders.
Resolved (Unanimously)

1. The committee agreed to instruct officers to consult on a range of options
regarding speed reduction.

CliIr Taylor rejoined the meeting.

Wulfstan Way

The Principal Landscape Architect sought authorisation from the committee for
a topographical survey.

The committee thanked the Principal Landscape Architect for the work
undertaken to date on the project.

Resolved (Unanimously)
1. To authorise a topographical survey of the site at a cost of £1600.

Planning Application

11a 10-0248-FUL 54 Kelsey Crescent, Cambridge

Site Address: 54 Kelsey Crescent

Application Number: 10/0248-FUL

Proposal: Erection of a new 2metre fence, following removal of
existing (retrospective application).

Applicant: Mrs Beryl Fairweather

Officer Recommendation: APPROVE

Page 6



South Area Committee

Thursday, 8 July 2010

Public Speaker: Mrs S Glynn

Decision. APPROVED (unanimously)

11b 10-0485-FUL 102 Glebe Road, Cambridge

Site Address: 102 Glebe Road

Application Number: 10/0485-FUL

Proposal: Erection of two dwelling (following demolition of existing

dwelling).

Applicant: Mr. G. B Jeffery

Officer Recommendation: APPROVE

Page 7



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

Public Speaker: Mr C Anderson

Decision: APPROVED (Unamiously), with the final two conditions
on the agenda recognised as Informatives, and two additional
conditions:

1. Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority, there shall be no collections from or deliveries to or in
association with the development of the site, during both the
demolition and construction stages of the development, outside the
hours of 0930 and 1500 on Mondays — Fridays and 0700 hrs and
1900 hrs on Saturdays; there shall be no collections or deliveries
on Sundays and Bank and public holidays.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to avoid conflict
with the prime times for movements to and from the nearby
Pelican Pre-Preparatory School and in the interest of the amenity
of neighbours. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006, policies 3/7 and 4/13
and 8/2)

2. No development shall commence until details of soft landscape
works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. Soft landscape works shall include planting
plans; written specifications (including cultivation and other
operations associated with plant and grass establishment);
schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate and an implementation
programme. Particular attention shall be given to planting on the
periphery of the site designed to help limit the impact of the
development as seen from neighbouring property. The scheme
shall be implemented in accordance with the detail agreed and any
planting that dies within a period of 5 years from the introduction of
the planting scheme, shall be replaced with new planting.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that
suitable soft landscape is provided as part of the development, in a
way which help the development become assimilated into its
surroundings as quickly as is practicable

10/40/SAC Start time of meetings - 2010/11

Page 8



South Area Committee Thursday, 8 July 2010

The committee resolved by 5 votes to 0 to revise the start times to 7:30pm for
future meetings.

The meeting ended at 9:30pm.

CHAIR

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6
CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

Report by: Head of Policy and Projects
To:  South Area Committee Date: 09 September 2010

Wards:  Trumpington, Queen Edith’s, Cherry Hinton

Environmental Improvements Programme

1 DECISIONS TO BE MADE

e Waulfstan Way Local Centre
Decision: Whether to implement the scheme subject to positive
consultation at an estimated cost of £101,000.

2 BUDGET (See over)

Page 11



SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE
Environmental Improvements Programme 2010-2011

Rectory Terrace - Cherry Hinton High St Shop
Forecourt [SCHEME ON HOLD] 0 60,000
Woulfstan Way Local Centre 0 101,000
total estimated cost of projects in development 0 161,000
Uncommitted Budget 22,571

Cherry Hinton High Street hanging baskets (2010) 0 7,850 7,850 7,850
Cherry Hinton High Steet Verges 577 39,423 40,000 40,000
Fisher's Lane Verge Parking 8 24,742 24,750 24,750
total cost to implement adopted projects 72,015]
Uncommitted Budget 183,571

costed.

*Projects agreed by Ctte to be investigated, but no budget committed. Costs shown are estimated and will depend on detailed design
and site investigation. N.B. The estimated costs shown above are merely given as a rough guide until the projects can be designed and

Page 12

9 Sept 2010




3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.2

APPROVED SCHEMES - PROGRESS

Rectory Terrace, Cherry Hinton High Street Forecourts
This scheme is on hold whilst the developer proposals to
redevelop the site are determined.

Cherry Hinton High Street Verges
This scheme has now been completed.

Clarendon Road/Shaftsbury Road

A scoping consultation is currently being carried out for this area,
which was due to complete at the end of August. This has been
extended to the end of September at the request of Councillor
Stuart. The results will be presented to the next South Area
Committee in November.

SCHEMES REQUIRING DECISIONS

Wulfstan Way Local Centres Scheme

A workshop with traders, interested local residents and stakeholders
took place on Tuesday 22™ June. This identified key design aspects
for further development.

The plan in Appendix 1 of this report shows the proposed layout of
this scheme, which includes:

¢ New higher quality paving of forecourt areas and footway
links.

e Feature seating area with possible semi-circular bench
involving public art.

e Five new parking spaces and improved definition of existing
bays.

e New Notice Board.

e New cycle racks.

Raised carriageway to create flush crossing at existing zebra

crossing point.

Improved highway lighting and lighting of the forecourt.

Recycling area upgraded.

Crown lifting of large tree.

Improvements to planting bed layouts and replanting of one

existing tree.

Page 13



The current estimated cost of this scheme is £173,473. It is
proposed that South Area Committee contribute £101,000 from the
Environmental Improvement Programme. A further £26,473 is
available from S106 public realm funding, £17,000 from public art
S106 and £29,000 from the Environmental Safety fund for
improvements to lighting.

Subject to the agreement of this Committee, Officers now propose
to carry out a local public consultation on the attached proposals.
The scheme could then be implemented in the New Year, subject to
the results of the consultation.

Recommendation: That the Committee agree to implement the
scheme subject to positive consultation at an estimated cost of
£101,000.

Decision: Whether to implement the scheme subject to positive
consultation at an estimated cost of £101,000.

Page 14



7.0

8.0

IMPLICATIONS

Equal Opportunities Implications

Covered as one of the assessment criteria

Environmental Implications

The whole purpose of this programme is to bring about

improvements in the environment

Community Safety Implications
Covered as one of the assessment criteria

INSPECTION OF PAPERS

To inspect or query the background paperwork or report, please
contact,

Andrew Preston
Environmental Projects Manager

Telephone: 01223 - 457172
Email: andrew.preston@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 15



APPENDIX ONE

Existing planting bed
to be re-shaped

New notice board

o

New cycle racks

27

7
7 \

Existing planting bed
to be re-shaped

Five new car parking
spaces

Revision Date

ENVIRONMENT AND PLANNING

\w&w;&&RWAE

By

Details

New hardstand area
including seating and

bins
N

B

Raise carriageway for
level crossing point

New footpath link

Replace existing tree
with non-fruiting
specie

Defined car parking
paces to enable more

V7 =~ parking

New 'Node' recycling
bins

Area Wide Improvements

Improved Paving

New high quality concrete
paving in a buff colour

to enhance the link between
the two areas

Improved Street Lighting
New high quality
street lighting

Page 16

DEPARTMENT

URBAN DESIGN TEAM

Simon Payne, Director of Environment and Planning

m_mmmm 0 Drawn: Checked: | Date
@ A3 AH AP AUG 2010

“This map is reproducad from Ordnance Swrvey material with the ission of

Project: Wulfstan Way - Local Improvement

scheme

Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright. Unauthorised reproduction
infringes Crown copyright and may lead o prosecution or civil proceedings.”
City Council (Licence No. 100019730) 2010.

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

DO NOT SCALE

The Guildhall Cambridge CB2 3QJ

Tel: 01223 - 457200 or 457201

Figured o scaled di

Drawing:  Layout Plan

werify all dimensions on sie
drawings. Discrepancies io
be brought to the contract administrator's | landscape architect's attention_

Job Ref / EIP 020 158 002 Revision

QWG.No




APPENDIX TWO

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA - as agreed by Executive Councillor (Environment) on 18
March 2003 with amendments agreed 22 March 2005

The essential criteria for consideration of funding of Environmental Improvement
works are:

e Schemes should have a direct, lasting and noticeable improvement to the
appearance of a street or area.

e Schemes should be publicly visible and accessible.

e Schemes must have the owners consent if on private land — unless there are
exceptional circumstances by which Area Committee may wish to act
unilaterally and with full knowledge and responsibility for the implication of such
action.

e Schemes must account for future maintenance costs.

Desirable criteria — potential schemes should be able to demonstrate some level of:

Active involvement of local people.

Benefit for a large number of people.

‘Partnership’ funding.

Potential for inclusion of employment training opportunities.

Ease and simplicity of implementation.

Potential for meeting key policy objectives (e.g. improving community safety or
contributing to equal opportunities).

Categories of scheme ineligible for funding:

e Where a readily available alternative source of funding is available.

e Revenue projects.

e Schemes that have already received Council funding (unless it can be clearly
demonstrated that this would not be ‘top up’ funding).

e Works that the City or County Council are under an immediate obligation to
carry out (e.g. repair of dangerous footways)

e Play areas (as there are other more appropriate sources of funding including
S106 monies)

The following categories of work were agreed as being eligible for funding by the Area
Committees:

e Works in areas of predominately council owned housing
e Works to construct lay-bys where a comprehensive scheme can be carried

out which not only relieves parking problems but achieves environmental
improvements.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda ltem 7a

SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE 9™ September 2010

Application 10/0700/FUL Agenda

Number Iltem

Date Received 15th July 2010 Officer Miss
Catherine
Linford

Target Date 9th September 2010

Ward Cherry Hinton

Site 71 Mill End Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1
oUW

Proposal Erection of single storey dwelling at land to the rear
of 71 Mill End Road.

Applicant Mr & Mrs Wang
71 Mill End Road Cambridge Cambridgeshire CB1
QUW

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT

1.1

1.2

1.3

The site is situated to the west side of Mill End Road and forms
part of the rear garden of 71 Mill End Road, with its western
boundary abutting the rear gardens of 27-31 Malvern Road.
The site will be accessed between 71 and 73 Mill End Road,
following the demolition of the applicant’s existing garage and
carport. The garden is well-maintained and includes a number
of trees, including a mature apple tree.

In 2006, planning permission was granted for a 3-bedroom
single-storey dwelling to the rear of 69 Mill End Road, which is
of a similar design to that proposed in this application. This
dwelling has now been completed and is known as 69a Mill End
Road.

The site does not fall within any Conservation Area and is
outside the controlled parking zone.

Page 19



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0

THE PROPOSAL

This application seeks planning permission for a 3-bedroom,
single-storey dwelling.

The layout of the proposed building is ‘Z" shaped, with the
widest part (14m) stretching north/south across the width of the
plot, leaving 1m-2m to the northern boundary with the garages
to the rear of 19-25 Malvern Road, and 1m-1.6m to the
boundary with 69a Mill End Road. The northern flank of the
building (closest to the garage block) is approximately 2.2 in
length, and the southern flank (closest to 69a Mill End Road) is
approximately 4.4m in length.

Off-street parking for two cars will be provided to the front of the
new dwelling, along with bin storage.

The application is accompanied by the following supporting
information:

1. Design and Access Statement

SITE HISTORY

There is no relevant site history for this site, but the site history
of the adjacent site, 69 Mill End Road is relevant;

Reference Description Outcome
C/04/0081 Erection of 2no chalet bungalows W/D
and 2no replacement double
garages (outline application).
C/04/0157 Erection of single storey side A/C
extension, narrowing of existing
garage, and erection of new
pitched garage roof and infill
porch extension.

C/04/0904 Erection of two bungalows. REF
(Appeal
dismissed
)

06/0331/OQUT Outline application for the REF

erection of a 3 bed dwelling
06/0785/FUL  Erection of single storey dwelling A/C
to the rear of 69 Mill End Road

Page 20



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Decision Notice for the most recent approval
(06/0785/FUL) is attached to the report as Appendix 1.

PUBLICITY

Advertisement: No
Adjoining Owners: Yes
Site Notice Displayed: No
Public Meeting/Exhibition (meeting of): No
DC Forum (meeting of): No
POLICY

Central Government Advice

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable
Development (2005): Paragraphs 7 and 8 state that national
policies and regional and local development plans (regional
spatial strategies and local development frameworks) provide
the framework for planning for sustainable development and for
development to be managed effectively. This plan-led system,
and the certainty and predictability it aims to provide, is central
to planning and plays the key role in integrating sustainable
development objectives. Where the development plan contains
relevant policies, applications for planning permission should be
determined in line with the plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise.

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (2006): Sets out to
deliver housing which is: of high quality and is well designed;
that provides a mix of housing, both market and affordable,
particularly in terms of tenure and price; supports a wide variety
of households in all areas; sufficient in quantity taking into
account need and demand and which improves choice;
sustainable in terms of location and which offers a good range
of community facilities with good access to jobs, services and
infrastructure; efficient and effective in the use of land, including
the re-use of previously developed land, where appropriate. The
statement promotes housing policies that are based on
Strategic Housing Market Assessments that should inform the
affordable housing % target, including the size and type of
affordable housing required, and the likely profile of household
types requiring market housing, including families with children,

Page 21



5.4

5.5

5.6

single persons and couples. The guidance states that LPA’s
may wish to set out a range of densities across the plan area
rather than one broad density range. 30 dwellings per hectare is
set out as an indicative minimum. Paragraph 50 states that the
density of existing development should not dictate that of new
housing by stifling change or requiring replication of existing
style or form. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate a
positive approach to renewable energy and sustainable
development.

Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3): Housing has been
reissued with the following changes: the definition of previously
developed land now excludes private residential gardens to
prevent developers putting new houses on the brownfield sites
and the specified minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare
on new housing developments has been removed. The
changes are to reduce overcrowding, retain residential green
areas and put planning permission powers back into the hands
of local authorities. (June 2010)

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (2001): This
guidance seeks three main objectives: to promote more
sustainable transport choices, to promote accessibility to jobs,
shopping, leisure facilities and services, by public transport,
walking and cycling, and to reduce the need to travel, especially
by car. Paragraph 28 advises that new development should
help to create places that connect with each other in a
sustainable manner and provide the right conditions to
encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport.

Circular 11/95 — The Use of Conditions in Planning
Permissions: Advises that conditions should be necessary,
relevant to planning, relevant to the development permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

Circular 05/2005 - Planning Obligations: Advises that
planning obligations must be relevant to planning, necessary,
directly related to the proposed development, fairly and
reasonably related in scale and kind and reasonable in all other
respect.

Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 — places a
statutory requirement on the local authority that where planning

Page 22



5.7

5.8

5.9

permission is dependent upon a planning obligation the
obligation must pass the following tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003
Planning Obligation Related Policies

P6/1 Development-related Provision
P9/8 Infrastructure Provision

Cambridge Local Plan 2006

3/1 Sustainable development
3/4 Responding to context

3/7 Creating successful places
3/10Subdivision of existing plots
3/12 The design of new buildings
5/1 Housing provision

8/2 Transport impact

8/6 Cycle parking

8/10 Off-street car parking

Planning Obligation Related Policies

3/7 Creating successful places

3/8 Open space and recreation provision through new
development

5/14 Provision of community facilities through new development
10/1 Infrastructure improvements (transport, public open space,
recreational and community facilities, waste recycling, public
realm, public art, environmental aspects)

Supplementary Planning Documents
Cambridge City Council (May 2007) — Sustainable Design
and Construction: Sets out essential and recommended

design considerations of relevance to sustainable design and
construction. Applicants for major developments are required to

Page 23



5.10

submit a sustainability checklist along with a corresponding
sustainability statement that should set out information indicated
in the checklist. Essential design considerations relate directly
to specific policies in the Cambridge Local Plan 2006.
Recommended considerations are ones that the council would
like to see in major developments. Essential design
considerations are urban design, transport, movement and
accessibility, sustainable drainage (urban extensions), energy,
recycling and waste facilities, biodiversity and pollution.
Recommended design considerations are climate change
adaptation, water, materials and construction waste and historic
environment.

Cambridge City Council (March 2010) — Planning Obligation
Strategy: provides a framework for securing the provision of
new and/or improvements to existing infrastructure generated
by the demands of new development. It also seeks to mitigate
the adverse impacts of development and addresses the needs
identified to accommodate the projected growth of Cambridge.
The SPD addresses issues including transport, open space and
recreation, education and life-long learning, community
facilities, waste and other potential development-specific
requirements.

Material Considerations
Central Government Guidance

Letter from Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government dated 27 May 2010 that states that the coalition is
committed to rapidly abolish Regional Strategies and return
decision making powers on housing and planning to local
councils. Decisions on housing supply (including the provision
of travellers sites) will rest with Local Planning Authorities
without the framework of regional numbers and plans.

City Wide Guidance
Cycle Parking Guide for New Residential Developments
(2010) — Gives guidance on the nature and layout of cycle

parking, and other security measures, to be provided as a
consequence of new residential development.

Page 24



6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

CONSULTATIONS
Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering)

No Objection: Subject to conditions relating to drainage, the
material to be used for the driveway and access.

The above responses are a summary of the comments that
have been received. Full details of the consultation responses
can be inspected on the application file.

REPRESENTATIONS

Councillor Newbold has commented on this application,
requesting that the application is determined by South Area
Committee, due to concerns about the development and the
loss of a mature traditional apple tree in an area that used to be
an orchard until the 1960s.

The owners/occupiers of the following addresses have made
representations:

1 25 Malvern Road
1 29 Malvern Road
1 31 Malvern Road
1 35 Malvern Road

The occupiers of 73 Mill Road did object the application, but
have not withdrawn their objection.

The representations can be summarised as follows:
Character

1 The proposed bungalow would sit closer to the boundary
with Malvern Road than 69a Mill End Road, to the rear of
69.

1 The garden adds to the peaceful character of the area.

1 The large apple tree from part of the orchards would be
removed. This contributes significantly to the local
character of the area and provides a historic link to the
past.

1 The fence between the site and Malvern Road is in a poor
condition and should be replaced at a height of 1.95m.

Page 25



[]
[]

Large garden provides an environment for wildlife.
Details of boundary treatments should be submitted, after
discussions with the neighbours.

Residential amenity

[]

[]

[]

A loft conversion should not be allowed in the future as
this would compromise privacy.

The bungalow would block light into 27 and 29 Malvern
Road.

Disturbance from vehicles accesses the site between 71
and 73 Mill End Road. Off-street parking spaces are not
necessary because Mill End Road has no parking
restrictions.

The proposed new trees would block light to 27 and 29
Malvern Road.

Increase in noise — during construction and once
occupied.
Overbearing sense of enclosure to the properties on

Malvern Road.

7.4 The above representations are a summary of the comments
that have been received. Full details of the representations can
be inspected on the application file.

8.0 ASSESSMENT

8.1 From the consultation responses and representations received
and from my inspection of the site and the surroundings, |
consider that the main issues are:

NownAE L=

Principle of development

Context of site, design and external spaces
Residential amenity

Refuse arrangements

Car and cycle parking

Third party representations

Planning Obligation Strategy

Principle of Development

8.2 Policy 5/1 of the Cambridge Local Plan explains that provision
is made for an increase of 12,500 dwellings over the period
1999-2016; although it recognises that many of these will be

Page 26



from larger sites within the urban area and in the urban
extensions, development for housing on windfall sites, such as
this, will be permitted subject to the existing land use and
compatibility with adjoining uses.

8.3 The updated PPSS3 reclassifies private residential gardens from
previously developed or brownfield land to greenfield land. This
does not mean that garden land cannot be developed under
any circumstances. At the present time, national policy does
not preclude the development of private gardens, but garden
land is not considered to be brownfield land and is not therefore
of the same priority and proposals for the development of
garden land will continue to be assessed against Policy 3/10 of
the Cambridge Local Plan (2006) relating to the subdivision of
plots.

8.4 Policy 3/10 states that:

Residential development within the garden area or curtilage of
existing properties will not be permitted if it will:

a) Have a significant adverse impact on the amenities of
neighbouring properties through loss of privacy, loss of
light, an overbearing sense of enclosure and the
generation of unreasonable levels of traffic or noise
nuisance;

b) Provide inadequate amenity space, or vehicular access
arrangements and parking spaces for the proposed and
existing properties;

c) Detract from the prevailing character and appearance of
the area;

d) Adversely affect the setting of Listed Buildings, or
buildings or gardens of local interest within or close to the
site;

e) Adversely affect trees, wildlife features or architectural
features of local importance located within or close to the
site; and

f) Prejudice the comprehensive development of the wider
area of which the site forms part.

8.5 | have discussed this application with the City Council’s Nature
Conservation Projects Officer, and although | understand, and
have some sympathy, with the concerns raised by residents
about wildlife, this site is not worthy of any special

Page 27



8.6

8.7

8.8

environmental, wildlife or biodiversity protection. There is no
wider comprehensive approach that should be considered given
this application relates to a single rear garden without the ability
to be linked to other adjacent land. The development is
therefore dependant on policies relating to character, amenity,
access and parking which are considered and discussed below.

In my opinion, the principle of the development is acceptable
and in accordance with policy 5/1.

Context of site, design and external spaces

There are various housing styles within the surrounding area,
comprising detached and semi-detached houses, bungalows
and flats. The predominant form of housing in the area is two-
storey dwellings, but in the very immediate area there are a
number of single-storey dwellings, including 71 Mill End Road
(the parent dwelling), 69 Mill End Road, 69a Mill End Road
(directly to the rear of 69 Mill End Road, and 52 Mill End Road
(to the rear of 54 Mill End Road on the opposite (eastern) side
of the road). In my opinion an appropriately designed bungalow
of an appropriate design and scale would not be out of keeping.

Backland development in this case is, | believe acceptable.
Other backland development has been accepted in the
immediate area including to the rear of the adjacent property 69
Mill End Road (creating 69a Mill End Road) and to the rear of
54 Mill End Road (creating 52 Mill End Road). The rear garden
of 71 Mill End Road (the site) is well-kept and is one of the
largest gardens in this area. The houses on Malvern Road, to
the rear of the site, have very small rear gardens, and some
residents have argued that the garden of 71 adds to the
peaceful character of the area, and is a pleasant outlook for the
occupiers of the houses on Malvern Road. | would not dispute
this, but reiterate that this garden has no specific protection.
The guidance related to Policy 3/10 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) maintains that:

Gardens represent an important part of the character and
amenity value of many parts of the City. They can be important
visually where they contribute to the street scene or to the
openness of and development pattern of an area. They can be
important to biodiversity because they contribute to the network
of green spaces within the City -+

Page 28



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

| understand the importance of this garden area to the residents
that overlook it, but as the garden is not visible from the street, |
do not believe that it is an important part of the character of the
area, or that it contributes to the street scene, in a way that
makes it worthy of protection. | also understand resident’s
concerns about the loss of the apple tree. This tree is not
protected, (and being a fruit tree cannot be the subject of a Tree
Preservation Order), and could be felled at any time, and
therefore | do not consider it reasonable that this tree constrains
development, especially as this tree is to be replaced.

The access to the site will be between 71 and 73 Mill End Road
and will be created following the demolition of the applicant’s
garage and carport. This would mimic the access to 69a Mill
End Road (to the rear of 69 Mill End Road) and in my opinion
an additional access point here would not be out of character
with the area.

The issue in my opinion is whether what is proposed can be
properly accommodated without adverse impact on the amenity
of others and without being overbearing.

In my opinion the proposal is compliant with Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) policies 3/4, 3/7, and 3/12.

Residential Amenity

Impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers

The issues to consider here include possible overlooking,
overshadowing, loss of light, noise and disturbance, the
proximity of the proposed dwelling to surrounding neighbouring
properties and the potential for causing an overbearing sense of
enclosure.

Overshadowing

The properties on Malvern Road are on lower land than the site,
but in saying this | do not believe that the proposed single-
storey dwelling would have any significant detrimental impact
on the occupiers of these properties. The proposed dwelling
would be a similar height to 71 Mill End Road, and would sit
approximately 10.8m from the western boundary (with the

Page 29



8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

properties on Malvern Road) at it's closest point. Most of the
rear wall of the proposed bungalow, including the living room
will be 13 metres fro the common boundary. Due to this
separation distance, the height of the proposed dwelling, and
the orientation of the site, | do not believe that the proposed
dwelling would overshadow or enclose the properties on
Malvern Road.

69a Mill End Road, to the south is in line with the proposed
dwelling, with the exception of the northern projecting element,
which would project just 2.2m further forward, and due to this |
do not have any concerns about the proposed dwelling
overshadowing 69a.

The east elevation of the proposed dwelling does not project as
far forward as the east elevation of 69a, and the proposed
dwelling would sit 12m from the rear of 71 at it closest point.
Due to the separation distance the height of the proposed
dwelling and the orientation of the buildings, | do not believe
that the proposed dwelling would overshadow 71.

Overlooking

As long as the boundary treatment along the western boundary
is substantial (ie a close boarded fence, which | suggest should
be not less that 1.8 metres in height), | do not believe that there
would be any potential for overlooking the properties on
Malvern Road.

69a Mill End Road, to the south is in line with the proposed
dwelling, with the exception of the northern projecting element.
There are no windows in the flank of this projecting element and
the windows/door in the south elevation would look out onto the
boundary treatment, which is currently a hedge, and the flank
wall of 69a beyond this. As before, as long as the boundary
treatment is substantial and remains so, | do not believe an
additional dwelling here would compromise the privacy of the
occupiers of 69a.

The east elevation of the proposed dwelling does not project as
far forward as the east elevation of 69a, and the proposed
dwelling would sit 12m from the rear of 71 at it closest point.
The gable end facing out onto the retained rear garden area of
71 Mill End Road would include a ‘wrap-around’ window and

Page 30



8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

door (with further windows included in the set back section of
this elevation), but | consider the distance between the two
properties too great to warrant refusal of the application on this
point.

To protect the privacy of neighbouring occupiers, | would
recommend that details of the boundary treatment for all
boundaries are required by condition (condition 4). Although |
do not have any concerns about overlooking from this single-
storey dwelling, the situation could be entirely different if the
dwelling had habitable rooms in the roof, which could be added
in the future under Permitted Development. [, therefore,
recommend that Permitted Development Rights are removed by
condition (conditions 5 and 6), to enable any extension
(especially a roof extension) to be assessed by the Local
Planning Authority.

Disturbance

The access way between 71 and 73 Mill End Road (currently a
driveway serving the applicant’s garage and carport, which are
to be demolished) could create disturbance for the occupiers of
71 and 73 Mill End Road. This is an issue that needs to be
addressed, but in my opinion, the additional vehicular traffic
caused by one extra dwelling would not have so a significant
affect, as to justify refusal of this application. The potential for
disturbance ould be mitigated by the requirement of a bound
surface, not loose gravel, which would help reduce noise of
vehicles.

Building works do cause disturbance, and therefore some
disturbance will be experienced by the occupiers of
neighbouring properties. This however, will be short-term and
can be mitigated to some degree by controlling contractor
working hours and delivery hours by condition (conditions 2 and
3).

Amenity space for the occupiers of 71 Mill End Road

As the existing garden is large, the subdivision of the plot will
not result in inadequate amenity space for the occupiers of the
‘parent’ property. The retained garden, although significantly
smaller, is adequate in size and comparable with the gardens of
the properties on Malvern Road, and is therefore acceptable.

Page 31



8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

In my opinion, subject to conditions, the proposal adequately
respects the residential amenity of its neighbours and the
constraints of the site and | consider that it is compliant with
Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/4 and 3/7.

Amenity for future occupiers of the site

A reasonable amount of amenity space would be provided for
the new dwelling, along with the provision of new trees. This is
a domestic garden, and it could be argued that the landscaping
of the garden should be left to the future occupiers of the
dwelling. However, as the existing garden is an asset for the
occupiers of neighbouring properties, | consider it reasonable to
require a landscaping scheme by condition to ensure that new
trees are planted (condition 7).

In my opinion the proposal provides a high-quality living
environment and an appropriate standard of residential amenity
for future occupiers, and | consider that in this respect it is
compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 3/7 and
3/12.

Refuse Arrangements

Bin storage is shown at the front of the proposed dwelling. This
is some way from the highway for collection (at least 30m). To
a certain extent this is ‘buyer beware’ but | am not convinced
this is the most suitable location for bin storage on site. There
is clearly enough space on site for storage, but | would suggest
that the details of this are requested by condition (condition 8)
to enable the logistics of storage and collection to be agreed.

In my opinion, subject to conditions, the proposal is compliant
with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policy 3/12.

Highway Safety

Access to the site would be via a driveway between 71 and 73
Mill End Road. | am satisfied that there is sufficient space for a
vehicle to enter and leave the site in forward gear, which is
illustrated by the submitted turning diagram. The Local
Highway Authority has recommended that a condition is added
to the permission, preventing a gate from being erected at the

Page 32



8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

end of the driveway without planning permission (condition 16)
and another condition is recommended to ensure that the
material used for the driveway is bound, to prevent debris
spilling out onto the highway (condition 12). These conditions,
along with a condition ensuring that the manoeuvering area is
retained (condition 13) and conditions ensuring that the access
is an adequate width and specification (conditions 14 and 15),
will protect highway safety.

Car and Cycle Parking

Appendix C (Car Parking Standards) of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) states that a 3-bedroom dwelling, such as this,
should have no more than 2 off-street parking spaces. Two car
parking spaces are proposed for the proposed dwelling, with
two car parking spaces remaining for the existing dwelling. This
is within the standards, and is therefore acceptable in principle.
As the access to the site is between two dwellings (71 and 73
Mill End Road), it has been suggested, in one of the
representations received, that no off-street car parking spaces
should be provided, especially as there are no parking
restrictions currently in operation on Mill End Road. As
explained earlier on in this report, | do not consider that vehicles
using this access would have a materially detrimental impact on
the occupiers of these dwellings, and therefore | do not consider
it reasonable to insist that this development is ‘car free’.

Appendix D (Cycle Parking Standards) of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006) maintains that secure and covered storage for
bicycles must be provided at a rate of at least one space for
every bedroom. This equates to 3 spaces in this case. Cycle
parking is not shown on the submitted plans (although) there is
a shed, but it is clear that there is adequate space for storage.
Therefore, subject to the provision of details by condition
(condition 9), | consider that the proposal complies with the
Council’s requirements)

In my opinion, subject to conditions, the proposal is compliant
with Cambridge Local Plan (2006) policies 8/6 and 8/10.

Third Party Representations

The issues raised in the representations received have been
addressed under the headings above.

Page 33



8.34

8.35

8.36

Planning Obligation Strateqy

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 have
introduced the requirement for all local authorities to make an
assessment of any planning obligation in relation to three tests.
If the planning obligation does not pass the tests then it is
unlawful. The tests are that the planning obligation must be:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;

(b) directly related to the development; and

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

In bringing forward my recommendations in relation to the
Planning Obligation for this development | have considered
these requirements. The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010)
provides a framework for expenditure of financial contributions
collected through planning obligations. The applicants have
indicated their willingness to enter into a S106 planning
obligation in accordance with the requirements of the Strategy.
The proposed development triggers the requirement for the
following community infrastructure:

Open Space

The Planning Obligation Strategy requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision or
improvement of public open space, either through provision on
site as part of the development or through a financial
contribution for use across the city. The proposed development
requires a contribution to be made towards open space,
comprising outdoor sports facilities, indoor sports facilities,
informal open space and provision for children and teenagers.
The total contribution sought has been calculated as follows.

The application proposes the erection of one three-bedroom
house. A house or flat is assumed to accommodate one person
for each bedroom, but one-bedroom flats are assumed to
accommodate 1.5 people. Contributions towards children’s play
space are not required from one-bedroom units. The totals
required for the new buildings are calculated as follows:

Page 34



Outdoor sports facilities

Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total £
of unit | perunit |person |unit of such
units
studio |1 238 238
1bed |1.5 238 357
2-bed |2 238 476
3-bed |3 238 714 1 714
4-bed |4 238 952
Total | 714
Indoor sports facilities
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number | Total £
of unit | perunit | person | unit of such
units
studio | 1 269 269
1bed |15 269 403.50
2-bed |2 269 538
3-bed |3 269 807 1 807
4-bed |4 269 1076
Total | 807
Informal open space
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
studio |1 242 242
1bed |15 242 363
2-bed |2 242 484
3-bed |3 242 726 1 726
4-bed |4 242 968
Total | 726
Provision for children and teenagers
Type |Persons |£ per £per | Number |Total £
of unit | perunit | person |unit of such
units
studio 0 0 0
1bed |15 0 0 0

Page 35




8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

2-bed |2 316 632
3-bed |3 316 948 1 948
4-bed |4 316 1264

Total | 948

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/8 and 10/1.

Community Development

The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to community development
facilities, programmes and projects. This contribution is £1256
for each unit of one or two bedrooms and £1882 for each larger
unit. The total contribution sought has been calculated as
follows:

Community facilities

Type of unit | £per unit Number of such Total £
units
1 bed 1256
2-bed 1256
3-bed 1882 1 1882
4-bed 1882
Total | 1882

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 5/14 and 10/1.

Waste
The Planning Obligation Strategy (2010) requires that all new
residential developments contribute to the provision of

household waste and recycling receptacles on a per dwelling
basis. As the type of waste and recycling containers provided

Page 36



8.41

8.42

9.0

9.1

by the City Council for houses are different from those for flats,
this contribution is £75 for each house and £150 for each flat.
The total contribution sought has been calculated as follows:

Waste and recycling containers
Type of unit | £per unit Number of such Total £
units
House 75 1 75
Flat 150
Total | 75

Subject to the completion of a S106 planning obligation to
secure the requirements of the Planning Obligation Strategy
(2010), | am satisfied that the proposal accords with
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
policies P6/1 and P9/8 and Cambridge Local Plan (2006)
policies 3/7, 3/12 and 10/1.

Conclusion

It is my view that the planning obligation is necessary, directly
related to the development and fairly and reasonably in scale
and kind to the development and therefore the Planning
Obligation passes the tests set by the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010.

Conclusion

Although this is a backland site, which does use a rear garden,
the recent Central Government advice does not preclude the
development of garden land from development. In this
particular circumstance the Council needs to assess the
proposal against the tests of local plan policy 3/10. Having
looked at that policy and assessed the proposal in its context, |
do not consider there to be such serious implications for
neighbours as to justify refusal of this application. This
judgement has been made on the basis that this is single storey
accommodation only with appropriate servicing and adequate
levels of amenity being provided both for the occupiers of the
prospective dwelling and the ‘parent’ dwelling. Having
considered all these matters and particularly the changes to
Planning Policy Statement 3 regarding ‘garden grabbing’ the
recommendation is one of approval.

Page 37



10.0 RECOMMENDATION

1. APPROVE subject to the satisfactory completion of the
s106 agreement by 09 November 2010 and subject to the
following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.  Except with the prior written agreement of the local planning
authority in writing no construction work or demolition shall be
carried out or plant operated other than between the following
hours: 0800 hours to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, 0800 hours
to 1300 hours on Saturday and at no time on Sundays, Bank or
Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 4/13)

3.  Except with the prior agreement of the local planning authority
in writing, there should be no collection or deliveries to the site
during the demolition and construction stages outside the hours
of 0700 hrs and 1900 hrs on Monday - Saturday and there
should be no collections or deliveries on Sundays or Bank and
public holidays.

Reason: Due to the proximity of residential properties to this
premises and that extensive refurbishment will be required, the
above conditions are recommended to protect the amenity of
these residential properties throughout the redevelopment in
accordance with policies 4/13 and 6/10 of the Cambridge Local
Plan (2006)

4.  No development shall take place until there has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority a plan
indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary
treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be
completed before the building(s) is/are occupied and retained
thereafter unless any variation is agreed in writing by the local
planning authority.  Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Page 38



Reason: To ensure an appropriate boundary treatment is
implemented. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or with
any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modifications) no windows or dormer windows shall be
constructed other than with the prior formal permission of the
local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining properties.
(Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4 and 3/14)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any
order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no extensions, or additions or garages shall be
erected other than those expressly authorised by this
permission.

Reason: To protect the amenity of adjoining properties, and to
prevent overdevelopment of the site. (Cambridge Local Plan
2006 policies 3/4 and 3/14)

No development shall take place until full details of both hard
and soft landscape works have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority and these works shall
be carried out as approved. These details shall include
proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car
parking layouts, other vehicle and pedestrian access and
circulation areas; hard surfacing materials; minor artefacts and
structures (eg furniture, play equipment, refuse or other storage
units, signs, lighting); proposed and existing functional services
above and below ground (eg drainage, power, communications
cables, pipelines indicating lines, manholes, supports); retained
historic landscape features and proposals for restoration, where
relevant. Soft Landscape works shall include planting plans;
written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of
plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate and an implementation
programme.

Page 39



10.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that
suitable hard and soft landscape is provided as part of the
development. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/11 and 3/12)

No development shall commence until such time as full details
of the on-site storage facilities for waste including waste for
recycling have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. Thereafter the development shall be in
accordance with the approved details. The approved facilities
shall be retained thereafter unless alternative arrangements are
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason; To protect the amenities of nearby residents/occupiers
and in the interests of visual amenity. (East of England Plan
2008 policy ENV7 and Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4
and 4/13)

No development shall commence until details of facilities for the
covered, secured parking of bicycles for use in connection with
the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority in writing. The
approved facilities shall be provided in accordance with the
approved details before use of the development commences.

Reason: To ensure appropriate provision for the secure storage
of bicycles. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policy 8/6)

No development shall take place until samples of the materials
to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
development hereby permitted have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the appearance of the external surfaces

is appropriate. (East of England Plan 2008 policy ENV7 and
Cambridge Local Plan 2006 policies 3/4, 3/12 and 3/14)

Page 40



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The access shall be constructed with adequate drainage
measures to prevent surface water run-off onto the adjacent
public highway, in accordance with a scheme submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in
consultation with the Highway Authority.

Reason: To prevent surface water discharging to the
highway. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006, policy 8/2)

No unbound material shall be used in the surface finish of the
driveway within 6 metres of the highway boundary of the site.

Reason: To avoid displacement of loose material onto the
highway in the interests of highway safety. (Cambridge Local
Plan 2006, policy 8/2)

The manoeuvring area as shown on the drawings is to be
maintained so that it is free of any obstruction that would
prevent a domestic vehicle from being able to manoeuvre with
ease so it may enter and leave the property in a forward gear.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. (Cambridge Local
Plan 2006, policy 8/2)

The access shall be provided as shown on the approved
drawings and a width of access of 5 metres provided for a
minimum distance of ten metres from the highway boundary
and retained free of obstruction.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure
satisfactory access into the site. (Cambridge Local Plan 2006,
policy 8/2)

Prior to the commencement of the first use the vehicular access
where it crosses the public highway shall be laid out and
constructed in accordance with the Cambridgeshire County
Council construction specification.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure

satisfactory access into the site. (Cambridge Local Plan 20086,
policy 8/2)

Page 41



16.

Notwithstanding the provision of Class A of Schedule 2, Part 2
of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995, (or any order revoking, amending or
re-enacting that order) no gates shall be erected across the
approved access unless details have first been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. (Cambridge Local
Plan 2006, policy 8/2)

INFORMATIVE: This development involves work to the public
highway that will require the approval of the County Council as
Highway Authority. It is an OFFENCE to carry out any works
within the public highway, which includes a public right of way,
without the permission of the Highway Authority. Please note
that it is the applicant] s responsibility to ensure that, in
addition to planning permission, any necessary consents or
approvals under the Highways Act 1980 and the New Roads
and Street Works Act 1991 are also obtained from the County
Council.

INFORMATIVE: Public Utility apparatus may be affected by this
proposal. Contact the appropriate utility service to reach
agreement on any necessary alterations, the cost of which must
be borne by the applicant.

Reasons for Approval

1.This development has been approved subject to conditions
and following the prior completion of a section 106 planning
obligation (/a unilateral undertaking), because subject to those
requirements it is considered to generally conform to the
Development Plan, particularly the following policies:

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003: P6/1,
P9/8;

Cambridge Local Plan (2006): 3/4, 3/7, 3/10, 3/12, 5/1, 8/2,
8/6, 8/10;

2. The decision has been made having had regard to all other
material planning considerations, none of which was considered
to have been of such significance as to justify doing other than
grant planning permission.

Page 42



These reasons for approval can be a summary of the reasons
for grant of planning permission only. For further details on the
decision please see the officer report online at
www.cambridge.gov.uk/planningpublicaccess or visit  our
Customer Service Centre, Mandela House, 4 Regent Street,
Cambridge, CB2 1BY between 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.

2. Unless prior agreement has been obtained from the
Head of Development Services, and the Chair and
Spokesperson of this Committee to extend the period for
completion of the Planning Obligation required in
connection with this development, if the Obligation has not
been completed by 09 November 2010 it is recommended
that the application be refused for the following reason(s).

The proposed development does not make appropriate
provision for public open space, community development
facilities, education and life-long learning facilities, in
accordance with the following policies, standards and proposals
3/7, 3/8, 5/14, 10/1 of the Cambridge Local Plan 2006; and
policies P6/1 and P9/8 of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Structure Plan 2003; and as detailed in the Planning Obligation
Strategy 2010.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



/

W [
Appeal Decision The Planning

. " Inspectorate
Site visit made on 7" June 2005 4109 Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay

- istol BS1 6P
by T Cookson MRTPI Dip TP FRGS B e

e-mail: enquiries@planning-
inspectorate.gsi.gov.uk

N 5 Date
An Inspector appointed by the First Secretary of State 29 JUN 2115

—

Appeal Reference: APP/Q0505/A/04/1169728

69 Vil End Road, Cambridge, CB1 4JW

e The appeal is made under Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a refusal to grant
planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr. & Mrs. J Alien against Cambridge City Council ;

e The application (reference: C/04/0904/FP), is dated 30" July 2004, and was refosed by notice dated 13%
October 2004.

e The development proposed is ‘erection of hwo new b;ﬂows’.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Reasoning

2. The appeal site consists of the major part of the rear garden of 69 Mill End Road. It is some 991m*
in size upon which are some dilapidated outbuildings. The site is overgrown and unsightly. Access
is by way of a gated driveway between No. 69 and the neighbouring property to the south, No. 67.
There are houses at the rear, that is, to the west, as well as to the south. The large rear garden of 71
Mill End Road lies to the north.

3. The adopted Cambridge Local Plan accepts that backland development can provide development
opportunities, with Policy NE8 m particular requiring the exercise of strict control over
development. In terms of the design of the proposed bungalows, they would not be out of keeping
because of the variety of styles and designs found in the surrounding residential area.

4. However, the size of the dwellings and their positioning would create a development where the
buildings are crammed onto the site. This would result in a very limited and inadequate space about
the dwellings for the external paraphemalia of modern living and for the prospective inhabitanis to
enjoy their gardens fully. Significantly, the juxtaposition of the proposed dwellings, the small rear
gardens of adjacent properties, the relatively-low boundary fencing, and the small distances
involved, would canse a marked diminution in the amenities of the residents of these neighbouring
dwellings through noise, general disturbance and overlooking. I consider also that the restricted
width of the access drive and the proximity of the habitable rooms of No. 67 would be detrimental to
the amenities of the residents of that property through increased noise, disturbance and fumes from

vehicles.

5. 1 conclude, therefore that this proposal runs counter 0 the adopted Cambridge Local Plan, in
particular Policies BE1, BE2, and HO5. In reaching these conclusions I have had regard to all other

matters raised in the representations, but none is sufficient to outweigh the considerations I deem to
be material. ‘

/‘—-"
Inspector

Page 45

e



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



55'.?}?,-’,’3 it eiee 768 ’;’;”ﬁéf’ﬂ:” Location Plan
Planning Ref: 08/0785/FUL
Refained plot siza for No 63: 375 sqm Scale 7‘ 1, 250 @ A 1

s

Contractor is responsible for all setting out and must
check dimensions on site before work is put in hand.
Written dimensions only to be taken, this drawing
must not be scaled.

John Alderton Partnership to be immediately notified

of suspected omissions or discrélageiés.

Revisions




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 8th July 2010
	6 Environmental Improvement Projects
	7a 10/0700/FUL - Erection of single storey dwelling at land to the rear of 71 Mill End Road.
	Appendix 1 - 10-0700-FUL
	10-0700-FUL Map


